
Principal Scrutiny Adviser: 
Angela Brogden 

Tel: (0113) 37 88661 
Produced on Recycled Paper 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (ADULTS, HEALTH AND ACTIVE LIFESTYLES) - 
REMOTE CONSULTATIVE MEETING 

 

 
Consultative meeting to be held remotely* on 

Tuesday, 8th February, 2022 at 1.30 pm 
 

(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 1.00 p.m.) 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
C Anderson - Adel and Wharfedale; 

L Cunningham - Armley; 

J Dowson - Chapel Allerton; 

J Gibson - Cross Gates and Whinmoor; 

N Harrington - Wetherby; 

C Hart-Brooke - Rothwell; 

M Iqbal - Hunslet and Riverside; 

W Kidger - Morley South; 

G Latty - Guiseley and Rawdon; 

A Marshall-Katung (Chair) - Little London and 
Woodhouse; 

E Taylor - Chapel Allerton; 

 
Co-opted Member (Non-voting) 

 
Dr J Beal - Healthwatch Leeds 

 
 

Note to observers of the meeting: To remotely observe this meeting, please click on the 
‘To View Meeting’ link which will feature on the meeting’s webpage (linked below) ahead 
of the meeting. The webcast will become available at the commencement of the meeting.   

 
 

https://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1190&MId=11798 
  
 

*This is being held as a remote ‘consultative’ meeting.  While the meeting will be webcast live to enable public access, it 

is not being held as a public meeting in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972.  

Public Document Pack

https://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1190&MId=11798


 
B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 
To disclose or draw attention to any interests in 
accordance with Leeds City Council’s ‘Councillor 
Code of Conduct’. 
 

 

2   
 

  LTHT UPDATE ON THE IMPACT AND 
RESPONSE TO THE COVID-19 OMICRON 
VARIANT. 
 
To consider a report from the Head of Democratic 
Services responding to the Board’s request to 
receive an update from Leeds Teaching Hospitals 
NHS Trust on the impact and response to the 
Covid-19 Omicron variant. 
 

5 - 6 

3   
 

  PRIMARY MEDICAL SERVICES IN LEEDS - 
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT 
 
To consider and discuss a report from the Head of 
Democratic Services which presents information 
surrounding the workforce development of Primary 
Medical Services in Leeds. 
 

7 - 20 

4   
 

  ACTIVE LEEDS AND PHYSICAL ACTIVITY 
AMBITION UPDATE 
 
To consider and discuss a report from the Head of 
Active Leeds which presents an update on the 
development of the Physical Activity Ambition for 
Leeds and also the work of Active Leeds 
programmes and activities. 
 

21 - 
50 

5   
 

  WORK SCHEDULE 
 
To consider and discuss the Scrutiny Board’s work 
schedule for the 2021/22 municipal year. 
 

51 - 
58 

 
Third Party Recording  
 
Recording of this meeting is allowed to enable those not present to see or hear the proceedings 
either as they take place (or later) and to enable the reporting of those proceedings.  A copy of the 
recording protocol is available from the contacts named on the front of this agenda. 
 
Use of Recordings by Third Parties– code of practice 



 
C 

 
a) Any published recording should be accompanied by a statement of when and where the 

recording was made, the context of the discussion that took place, and a clear identification 
of the main speakers and their role or title. 

b) Those making recordings must not edit the recording in a way that could lead to 
misinterpretation or misrepresentation of the proceedings or comments made by 
attendees.  In particular there should be no internal editing of published extracts; 
recordings may start at any point and end at any point but the material between those 
points must be complete. 

 
Webcasting 
 
Please note – the publicly accessible parts of this meeting will be filmed for live or subsequent 
broadcast via the City Council’s website. At the start of the meeting, the Chair will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is to be filmed.



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

What is this report about? 
Including how it contributes to the city’s and council’s ambitions 

 

 The Adults, Health and Active Lifestyles Scrutiny Board requested to receive an update from 

Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust (LTHT) surrounding the impact of the Covid-19 

Omicron variant on service delivery and how the Trust is responding to try and mitigate this 

impact. 

 

 As part of this update, the Board also expressed an interest to understand how the Trust is 

working to particularly address the impact on elective care patients in terms of reducing 

waiting times for elective surgery. 

 

 Senior representatives from Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust will therefore be attending 

today’s meeting to provide this update to the Board, which will be in the form of a PowerPoint 

presentation during the meeting. 

 

 
Recommendations 

Members are requested to consider and discuss the information presented during today’s meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 LTHT update on the impact and response to the Covid-
19 Omicron variant. 

Date: 8th February 2022 

Report of: Head of Democratic Services 

Report to: Scrutiny Board (Adults, Health and Active Lifestyles) 

Will the decision be open for call in? ☐ Yes  ☒ No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? ☐ Yes  ☒ No 

Report author: Angela Brogden 

Tel: 0113 3788661 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Why is the proposal being put forward?  
 

1. In response to the request made by the Adults, Health and Active Lifestyles Scrutiny Board 
last month, representatives from the Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust will be attending 
today’s meeting to update the Scrutiny Board on the impact of the Covid-19 Omicron variant 
on service delivery and to explain how the Trust is responding to try and mitigate this impact, 
including work to address the impact on elective care patients. 
 

What impact will this proposal have? 

 

2. This update will be provided in the form of a PowerPoint presentation during the meeting to 
allow the latest position to be reflected as much as possible.  This update is to include 
reference to the national NHS preparations for Nightingale surge hubs and the role that the 
Trust is playing to host a surge hub on behalf of the North East and Yorkshire region.  
Members will also be briefed on the early stages of the Trust’s Elective Care Hubs 
Programme, with the intention of bringing a more detailed report to a future Scrutiny Board 
meeting. 
 

What consultation and engagement has taken place?  
 

3. Representatives from Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust will be attending today’s meeting 
to contribute to the Board’s discussion and address Members’ questions. 
 

What are the resource implications? 
 

4. Any associated resource implications will be reflected as part of the updated position being 
presented during today’s meeting.   However, information provided largely relates to external 
organisations, which may be subject to other considerations relating to resource 
implications.  Specific matters may need to be taken into account if any additional scrutiny 
activity is deemed appropriate. 
 

What are the legal implications?  
 

5. This report has no specific legal implications. 
 

What are the key risks and how are they being managed? 
 

6. Any associated risk management implications will be reflected as part of the updated 
position being presented during today’s meeting.   

 
Does this proposal support the council’s three Key Pillars? 

 

☐ Inclusive Growth  ☒ Health and Wellbeing  ☐ Climate Emergency 
 

7. The Leeds Health and Well-being strategy sets out the ambition that Leeds will be a healthy 
and caring city for all ages, where people who are the poorest improve their health the 
fastest.  

  

Appendices 
 

8. None. 
 

Background papers 
 
 

9. None. 

Wards affected: All 

Have ward members been consulted? ☐ Yes    ☐No 

 

Page 6



 
 

 

 

What is this report about? 
Including how it contributes to the city’s and council’s ambitions 

 

 During its meeting in September 2021, the Adults, Health and Active Lifestyles Scrutiny 

Board was advised of the intention to build greater capacity in primary care to help deal with 

the increase in demand for Same Day Response services.  While Members had queried 

capacity levels and vacancy figures relating to General Practice services specifically, the 

Board was informed of the aspiration to develop the primary care workforce in general, with 

the aim of covering various roles across the service, including greater use of community 

pharmacy consultation services.   

 

 At the request of the Scrutiny Board, this report provides further information surrounding the 

workforce development of Primary Medical Services in Leeds for Members consideration. 

 
Recommendations 

Members are asked to consider and discuss the information presented within this report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Primary Medical Services in Leeds – Workforce 
Development 

Date: 8th February 2022 

Report of: Head of Democratic Services 

Report to: Scrutiny Board (Adults, Health and Active Lifestyles) 

Will the decision be open for call in? ☐ Yes  ☒ No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? ☐ Yes  ☒ No 

Report author: Angela Brogden 

Tel: 0113 3788661 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



 

Why is the proposal being put forward?  
 

1. In September 2021, the Adults, Health and Active Lifestyles Scrutiny Board received a 
briefing from Leeds Clinical Commissioning Group surrounding Same Day Response (SDR) 
services.  This included actions to address current demand as well as the longer-term plans 
linked to the development of the Same Day Response Strategy for Leeds. 
 

2. The Board had also noted the intention to build greater capacity in primary care to help deal 
with the increase in demand for SDR services.  While Members had queried capacity levels 
and vacancy figures relating to General Practice services specifically, the Board was 
informed of the aspiration to develop the primary care workforce in general, with the aim of 
covering various roles across the service, including greater use of community pharmacy 
consultation services.  The Board therefore requested to receive further information 
surrounding the workforce development of Primary Medical Services in Leeds. 

 
What impact will this proposal have? 

 

3. Appended to this report is a briefing paper from NHS Leeds Clinical Commissioning Group 
for the Board’s consideration and comment.  This paper references the 2022/23 priorities 
and operational planning guidance1 recently published by NHS England and NHS 
Improvement that reiterates the national commitment towards investing in the NHS 
workforce.  In doing so, it describes the structure in place within Leeds and some of the 
initiatives underway to deliver this linked to the ongoing focus on developing a workforce 
strategy for primary care. 

 

What consultation and engagement has taken place?  
 

4. Representatives from NHS Leeds Clinical Commissioning Group will be attending today’s 
meeting to contribute to the Board’s discussion and address Members’ questions. 
 

What are the resource implications? 
 

5. The information provided in this report largely relates to external organisations, which may 
be subject to other considerations relating to resource implications.  Specific matters may 
need to be taken into account if any additional scrutiny activity is deemed appropriate. 
 

What are the legal implications?  
 

6. This report has no specific legal implications. 
 

What are the key risks and how are they being managed? 
 

7. The information provided in this report largely relates to external organisations, which may 
be subject to other considerations relating to risk management.  Specific matters may need 
to be taken into account if any additional scrutiny activity is deemed appropriate. 

  
 
 

                                                           
1 NHS England and NHS Improvement 2022/23 priorities and operational planning guidance (V2 published 14th January 2022) 

Wards affected: All 

Have ward members been consulted? ☐ Yes    ☐No 

 

Page 8

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/12/B1160-2022-23-priorities-and-operational-planning-guidance-v2.pdf


Does this proposal support the council’s three Key Pillars? 
 

☐ Inclusive Growth  ☒ Health and Wellbeing  ☐ Climate Emergency 
 

8. The Leeds Health and Well-being strategy sets out the ambition that Leeds will be a healthy 
and caring city for all ages, where people who are the poorest improve their health the 
fastest.  

  

Appendices 
 

9. Appendix 1 – Briefing paper from NHS Leeds Clinical Commissioning Group on Primary 
Medical Services in Leeds Workforce Development. 

 
 

Background papers 
 

10. None. 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 

 
 

 
 
 

PRIMARY MEDICAL SERVICES IN LEEDS 
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT  

 
1. BACKGROUND AND NATIONAL CONTEXT 
 
1.1 General practice in Leeds is currently served by 92 individual practices providing services to a 

registered population which continues to grow quarter on quarter with the current total at 898,846. 
 

1.2 Core general practice is funded through a national GP contract, with each practice being an 
independent contractor responsible for the recruitment, training and development and individual terms 
and conditions of its staff.   

 

1.3 Delivering high quality patient centred care relies on a large highly skilled workforce.  A growing 
population living longer with more complex needs means that the workforce can not standstill and 
continue to meet demand.  There is a need for more highly skilled members of the workforce and 
primary care is competing with the rest of NHS and the private sector to attract the right people.  

 

1.4 A role as a GP is one of the most recognised roles within general practice, to become a GP requires 
5 years at medical school, a further two years’ training as a foundation doctor and then three years on 
a GP Speciality Training Scheme.  This example is applicable for all registered clinical roles within 
general practice; it takes time to grow the workforce by first increasing training places. 

 
1.5 In 2019 the government committed to increasing the number of GPs in post by 2024/25 by 6,000 and 

nurses by 50,000.  Whilst progress has been made against this target there is also the challenge of 
an increasing trend of staff choosing to work part time or leaving the system early. 

 

1.6 The Planning Guidance for 2022/23 has recently been published and reiterates the national 
commitment towards investing in the NHS workforce.  A number of approaches are described: 

 

• Look After our people – A focus on retention and health and wellbeing of staff 

• Improve Belonging to the NHS – Improving the experience of minority groups working in the NHS 
and promoting equality 

• Work Differently – The creation of new and different roles working in innovative ways  

• Grow for the future – Expanding recruitment efforts including internationally, increasing training 
places and training and development opportunities for existing staff 

 
1.7 This paper will describe the structure in place within Leeds and some of the initiatives underway to 

deliver this. 
 
2. LEEDS POSITION 
 
2.1 Practices are contractually obliged to subject staff data to the National Workforce Reporting Service.  

This data is extracted for practices on a monthly basis and PCNs on a quarterly basis.  It is an 
important source of information that enables decisions to be made on where to invest, increase 
training and resources. 
 

2.2 Whilst the service provides rich data on the current staff across practices and PCNs, it no longer 
collects information on vacancies which in Leeds we recognise as a gap.  We are currently planning 
how we can supplement the data we have to include recruitment intentions for core general practice 
staff. 

 

Page 11



2.3 There is no specific standard within the contract which determines what workforce a practice should 
have in place other than that it is sufficient and safe to deliver core service as outlined in the contract.  

 

2.4 As commissioners we are able to look at the workforce data alongside the results of the bi-annual 
patient survey to assess where there may be gaps.  Figure 1 shows that as a CCG, 68% of patients 
reported in the last survey that they were fairly or very satisfied with the appointment times available 
to them compared to 67% nationally.  Interestingly, this is an improvement on the 2019 pre-pandemic 
result of 66% for Leeds. This data is available to access online at practice level and along with other 
results can be used as a proxy to assess where there are issues with access and staffing. 

 
Figure 1 – 2021 Survey Publication 

 
 

2.5 According to the NHS Digital General Practice Workforce Statistics data as of September 2021 there 
were 2064 WTE roles in general practice which breakdown as follows: 
 
Figure 2 

 

Staff Group Whole Time 
Equivalent  

Head Count 

GPs – Fully qualified 428.5 586 

GPs - Registrars and Trainees 135.5 136 

GPs -Locums* 0.6 3 

Nurses 262 357 

Direct Patient Care 204 280 

Administrative and 
Management  

1034 1406 

Totals 2064 2764 

*Likely to be significantly under reported as flexible staff is difficult to quantify 
 
2.6 The data above demonstrates that on average staff work a 3–4-day week however, it is important to 

note that these days, particularly for GPs, tend to be much longer working days than the recognised 
standard.  Whilst this potentially offers greater flexibility for both employee and employer and helps 
attract staff, it increases the requirements for training and development. It does not encompass all 

Page 12



staff working across primary care, some staff will be employed by other organisations such as 
midwives or social prescribers.   
 

2.7 Despite the challenges seen nationally, reassuringly we continue to see an upward trend across 
practices in Leeds in terms of growth of staff, including when accounting for population growth.  It is 
important to note that this trend will not be distributed evenly, and we know that recruitment is often 
more challenging in areas of deprivation.  It is vital that we support practices who struggle to recruit in 
deprived areas so as not to further widen health inequalities; as an example, we are currently 
supporting practices in deprived areas to recruit through working collaboratively with the Health and 
Care Academy.  

 
Figure 3 

 

 

 
 
 
2.8 On reviewing the data, variation in workforce levels by PCN is not immediately obvious based on 

deprivation as there are other factors at play such as workforce models, access arrangements and 
population demographics.  The data also does not enable us to observe staff turnover rates however, 
there are several scholarly articles noting the negative impact of deprivation on GP recruitment. 

 
 

21% increase in total staff from 

September 18 to June 21 

Page 13



2.9 It is also important to observe that despite the reported difficulties reported in the media in accessing 
primary care, in Leeds we have seen an increase in contacts in 2021.  Again, we recognise that this 
is not a universal pattern and we continue to work closely with practices who have experienced 
issues with access. 

 
Figure 4 

 
 
2.10 The value of a national reporting tool is that we are able to benchmark Leeds against the rest of the 

country.  Figure 5 below demonstrates that comparatively, Leeds has more clinical capacity per 
100,000 patients than England on average.   
 

2.11 Figure 5 also presents data on staff over age 55 so that the risk of retirement is highlighted.  Again, 
this is available at practice and PCN level and is important to be aware of so that we can work with 
practices to ensure that effective succession plans are in place.   

 
Figure 5 – General Workforce Statistics for Leeds – November 2021 

 
 

 

Page 14



3. IMPACT OF THE PANDEMIC  
 
3.1 The pandemic has changed the workforce within primary care both positively and negatively.  We 

have seen an increase of retired staff return to the frontline supporting general practice to deliver the 
vaccination programme.  This has enabled general practice to make a huge contribution to the 
vaccination drive whilst still delivering essential services. 

 
3.2 Consultations began to be delivered online almost instantly, a change that under business as usual 

would have taken a much longer implementation period.  This has enabled practices to support staff 
to work more flexibly and use limited estate more effectively.  Vitally, it has supported practice 
resilience by enabling staff to continue to work through the pandemic when isolating if they are 
otherwise well.  Whilst many patients welcome the introduction of a virtual offer, there are some that 
prefer and indeed need a traditional face to face consultation and we must continue to understand 
and meet this change in demand and improve patient experience of accessing services.  

 
3.3 Staff have been under huge amounts of pressure for a sustained period of time and some practices 

are beginning to experience staff shortages, particularly around administrative and clerical posts.  
Many of these staff have been working in patient facing roles throughout the pandemic and have 
sought other career opportunities because of their experience throughout the pandemic working on 
the frontline.  

 

3.4 In April 2022, it will be law that any member of staff working in a patient facing role delivering CQC 
regulated activities will be required to provide evidence of double vaccination.  Practices are working 
through the guidance to establish if any staff may be impacted by this guidance, undertaking 1:1’s 
and looking at opportunities to redeploy staff.  We are monitoring what impact this may have on 
practices, particularly mindful of any that may be disproportionately affected. 

 
 
4. ADDITIONAL ROLES REIMBURSEMENT SCHEME 
 
4.1 In 2019 as part of the five year framework for GP contractual reform to support the implementation of 

The NHS Long Term Plan, additional investment in general practice has been identified to support the 
expansion of multi-disciplinary teams and create capacity within general practice through the 
Additional Role Reimbursement Scheme.   

 
4.2 The scheme sees Primary Care Networks (PCNs), which are groups of practices working together in 

a geographical location covering on average a combined list of 30-40,000 patients, come together to 
jointly employ and share staff.   

 

4.3 There are new to primary care roles that can be employed under the scheme; Social Prescriber, First 
Contact Physiotherapist, Occupational Therapist, Trainee Nurse Associate, Physician Associate, 
Pharmacist, Paramedic, Care Co-ordinator, Pharmacy Technician, Dietician, Podiatrist and Mental 
Health Practitioner and Health & Wellbeing Coach.  

 

4.4 In addition to be roles described above, a care navigation role has been introduced in the last couple 
of years to support patients to see the right professional based on their needs first time.  Staff such as 
receptionists have received training to enable them to help patients by directing them to the most 
appropriate service or person.  They are not there to divert patients from a clinician or make any 
clinical decisions, but to support patients by using their detailed knowledge of the services available.  
For example, booking a patient with a midwife rather than a GP when they first contact the surgery 
which is quicker for the patient and avoids an unnecessary GP appointment.  

 
4.5 In Leeds we currently have 225 WTE roles employed under the scheme.  This is in addition to the 

core workforce numbers described above.  PCNs have submitted plans setting out their intentions to 
recruit further based on their allocations which increases year on year.  Plans submitted for 23/24 set 
out an ambition to employ in total, 530 additional roles. 

 

 

 

Page 15



4.6 This additional workforce is a welcomed and valuable part of the general practice workforce.  It offers 
not just a significant increase in capacity (25% increase in the current WTE workforce by 23/24) but 
an opportunity for primary care to work differently and collaboratively across practices with a greater 
skill mix.  Employing a specialist such as a dietician is not cost effective under the traditional general 
practice model however, working at scale as a group of practice enables a specialist to be employed 
and their expertise fully utilised.  

 

4.7 A varied and multi-disciplinary workforce provides valuable additional capacity in primary care with 
opportunities to work differently.  This workforce is able to support patients with less complex needs 
which frees up GPs to focus on more complex patients.  Whilst, this ‘left shift’ enables GPs to better 
focus their expertise on complex patients; it does impact on the health and wellbeing of GPs who then 
see more complex patients requiring intensive input.  

 

4.8 Figure 6 demonstrates the roles anticipated to be in place by March 2022.  Clinical Pharmacists are 
the most commonly employed role, as a valued member of the clinical team they are able to complete 
tasks that may previously have been done by a GP, having perhaps the greatest impact of all the 
roles available in reducing a GPs workload. As with many of the additional roles, there is further 
training and development required to enable the full value of the role to be realised, for example to 
become a prescriber.  This takes time and investment by the practice and the individual. 

 
Figure 6 Plans to March 22 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



4.9 Figure 7 details the ambitions of each PCN to increase their workforce further up to 23/24.  The 
biggest growth area is in care coordinators.  This is a staff group that can work flexibly supporting 
clinicians to manage complex patients.  Primary Care are increasingly seeing the value of this role in 
its flexibility to support specific populations and programmes of work.  As there is no formal training 
required unlike registered roles it is also easier to recruit and train staff in this role.  
 
Figure 7 Plans to March 24 

 
 
4.10 Whilst the roles under the scheme are a welcomed addition to primary care, it has created a number 

of challenges.  Primary Care estate is already operating at a high utilisation rate and there is no 
additional space for this additional workforce.  Practices have worked together to maximise the use of 
the estate they have however, the workforce is still growing and PCNs are highlighting that this is 
constraining their recruitment plans.  As a system, there is agreement that we need to consider the 
most appropriate location for services across the breadth of estate which might not always be within a 
GP practice.    

 
4.11 The roles are new to primary care and as such some have a complex set of requirements around 

training, development and supervision.  Some of the roles have a roadmap that must be followed to 
enable them to meet the requirements of working in a primary care setting.  This requires time out to 
complete the work required, placements and supervision capacity.   

 
4.12 The CCG has provided funding to enable a number of staff within the roles to work towards 

completing the required training under a qualified supervisor, once these roles are fully qualified, they 
will be able to support new staff and provide supervision moving forward.  There is further work to do 
to support this group of staff as the numbers grow further and until we have sufficient supervisory 
capacity within the system.  

 
4.13 We have a great opportunity with the additional roles scheme to use the plans submitted to forward 

plan how we can support staff recruitment.  We very much wish to do this as a city so that we are 
genuinely delivering on the ambition of the scheme to increase staff in the system as opposed to 
moving staff around organisations and creating staff shortages elsewhere. 

 

4.14 The greatest area of challenge is in mental health roles that are so vitally important to support 
patients.  The scheme requires practices to jointly employ the mental health roles in conjunction with 
Leeds & York Partnership Trust, to date one mental health role has been successfully recruited.  
Regional leads recently met to discuss how we might drive move forward and increase capacity 
within mental health roles and have identified some opportunities that may enable a more flexible 
approach.  We are awaiting further guidance on how this could be implemented for example, by 
working in partnership with the third sector.  In Leeds we already work closely with a mental health 
provider in the third sector and PCNs have used funding within the enhanced access service to 
increase the availability of mental health services.  

 

Page 17



5. WORKING AS A SYSTEM  
 

5.1 The issues presented highlight the need to work collaboratively around recruitment across primary 
care and the Leeds Health and Social Care system. We are working with a number of partners to 
identify opportunities to recruit, train, supervise and offer rotational roles across organisations through 
the Leeds One Workforce Group. 

 
5.2 The group is a unique partnership bringing together health, local authority, further and higher 

education, and the third and independent sectors. It is vital to see through the step changes needed 
to tackle the national and local workforce challenges, and to benefit from all the opportunities a 
joined-up approach brings with it.  There were 57,000 staff working in health and social care in Leeds 
when the group was established and the group aims to grow this to 60,000 over the next few years. 

 

5.3 The Winter Workforce Recruitment is an example of partners working together across the system.  
The campaign aims to recruit into specific roles, one of which is Occupational Therapists which PCNs 
under the additional roles scheme have plans to employ.  The campaign will be able to gain a wider 
reach and crucially seeks to find candidates from outside the Leeds system.  Applicants will be 
collated and matched with suitable vacancies across the system.  

 
5.4 Another key partner is NHS England and NHS Improvement; a number of workforce development 

initiatives are best implemented on wider, regional footprint.   For example, the market for GPs has 
changed in recent years with more GPs choosing to work flexibly as locums.  This has driven up the 
price of locum GPs nationally and reduced the pool of candidates for permanent posts.   NHS 
England and Improvement are leading the procurement of a digital solution across West Yorkshire 
and Harrogate that will support the creation of a GP Pool.  This will enable a much more local, 
responsive and familiar bank of locum to GPs to engage with practices when they need to employ 
locums.  Colleagues in Wakefield already have a GP Pool set up using the same digital solution and 
this has delivered real added value to their system reducing reliance on agencies.  

 
5.5 The pandemic has seen organisations working together more closely to ensure resilience.  Primary 

Care is also able to access staff though the LCH nurse bank, other partners such as LTHT and 
LYPFT have offered primary care the ability to access their administrative staff banks.  A pilot is being 
set up to look at offering primary care specific training to administrative bank staff so that if needed 
these staff are able be deployed to primary care at pace.  

 
6. TRAINING  

 
6.1 Training is a vast area that is critical to supporting the development of a skilled workforce.  As 

detailed in the introduction, nationally, training places are being increased however, this has not 
happened fast enough to keep up with demand particularly for some disciplines. Increasing the 
breadth of roles that work across general practice should reduce some of the growth in demand for 
traditional roles such as GPs and nurses.  

 
6.2 In Leeds, the GP Confederation is working closely with general practice to understand their training 

and development needs and has developed a number of programmes to support the upskilling of 
staff.  For example customer service skills for receptionists, bespoke management training and care 
navigation training.  Some of this has been delayed due the pandemic with TARGET afternoons 
having to be cancelled due to system pressures.  TARGET is dedicated time for practices to meet the 
learning and development needs of all staff and is highly valued by practices.  TARGET is an 
important commitment to education and training that goes some way to ensuring retention of the 
workforce and positioning Leeds as an attractive place to work in primary care.  

 

6.3 The confederation also work closely with partners from the Leeds One Workforce Group such to 
support candidates to come and work in general practice.  For example, as part of the Kickstart 
initiative, 14 people will shortly complete Cohort 1 of a programme to upskill them to become 
receptionists through taught modules and on the job training.  Two further cohorts are planned and 
this will support practices who are already struggling with capacity in this area.  

 

 

Page 18



6.4 Two PCNs are in the early stages of looking at how student placements could be managed on a PCN 
basis.  An innovative approach will hopefully provide a catalyst for more PCNs to come on board to 
offer greater numbers of placements to prospective students which will for some convert to 
permanent employees.  Supporting a student placement whilst worthwhile requires time and effort 
and so by working at PCN level there are economies of scale to be gained whilst offering the student 
a richer and broader experience.  There are also opportunities for some of the students nearing the 
end of their training to provide supervisory capacity to some of the additional roles which as set out 
earlier is currently a gap.  

 

6.5 The Kickstart scheme is similar to an apprenticeship in that it offers both taught and on the job 
experience.  Apprenticeships are available for a growing number of roles within the NHS and through 
Health Education England, practice can access some funding and support to recruit to apprentice 
roles. 

 

6.6 Apprentices can also be supported for existing employees.  Leeds has a Collaborative Apprenticeship 
Programme which seeks to provide existing employees who meet the required criteria with further 
skills and development across all of the health and social care organisations in our city.  As large 
organisations, Leeds City Council and Leeds Teaching Hospital pay 3% of their wage bill which then 
needs to be drawn down towards supporting apprenticeships.  As part of this collaboration, partners 
have supported the transfer of this apprenticeship levy to allow practices to benefit.  

 
7 RETENTION AND STAFF HEALTH  
 
7.1 The Health and Wellbeing of staff is more important than ever before.  Staff are exhausted both 

physically and mentally due to the demands of working through the pandemic.  NHS England 
launched a package of health and wellbeing support in 2020 for all NHS staff with support across a 
number of areas from work related stress to finance and relationships.  Prior to this there are 
programmes of support for GPs and clinicians who may have been experienced stress or burn out.  
As laid out in the planning guidance, it is important that we move to a preventative rather than a 
reactive approach towards health and wellbeing of staff. 

 
7.2 In 2020 Leeds undertook its first whole general practice workforce survey with a response rate of 

17%.  The report sought to understand the experience of staff working in general practice in Leeds 
and any forms of discrimination that they may have experienced. Whilst we are mindful of the 
response rate, 62% of staff reported that they had experienced at least one incidence of verbal abuse 
from patients and service users in the last 12 months.  There are also positive themes emerging from 
the survey with 79% of respondents sometimes, often or always looking forward to going to work and 
91% of respondents agreeing or strongly agreeing with the statement ‘I am trusted to do my work’ 
which form a sound foundation to implement positive change. 

 

7.3 The report highlighted areas of serious concern regarding work related stress, incidences of verbal 
abuse and physical violence and many forms of discrimination including sexism, ageism and racism. 
It is the collective responsibility of the survey sponsors to take the lead in combating these problems 
and the responsibility of everyone working in general practice in Leeds to be open to positive change. 

 

7.4 The report has identified a number of key themes that will now be aligned to existing groups to deliver 
on.  It is vitally important that we address the issues and work in a proactive way to improve the 
experiences if we are to retain the high calibre staff that work within our practices.  

 

7.5 As highlighted previously in the report we have seen a significant number of retired staff return to 
support general practice through the pandemic.  Qualified staff have been able to deliver vaccinations 
whilst existing medical staff who have remained up to date have been able to focus on delivering the 
core service for patients.   Nationally, we have been successful is receiving funding to build on this 
and look at how we might retain some of this retired workforce to continue to flexibly support general 
practice by completing tasks that are appropriate to their current level of experience and 
competencies.  

 

 

 

Page 19



8 SUMMARY 
 
8.1 The paper sets out a number of challenges particularly around the supply of registered posts.  We 

must continue to work to influence the growth of training places both nationally and locally.  We have 
a real opportunity with the significant funding available under the additional roles scheme to grow a 
broader and more specialist workforce in general practice and we are committed to looking at how we 
can support PCNs to do this whilst ensuring that we do not destabilise other parts of the system. 

 
8.2 The pandemic has enabled practices to explore different ways of working that promote a better work 

life balance for staff and use of estate through digital solutions.  Whilst this is something that we do 
not want to lose we must work closely with patients to understand their needs and preferences and 
ensure that they are supported and feel safe with the service they might receive.  A digital approach 
will always be an offer alongside face to face consultations and we must ensure that the right option 
is available to meet patients needs.  

 

8.3 Given the challenges of recruitment and the pressure that staff have been under throughout the 
pandemic, a key area of focus must be on staff retention and health and wellbeing.  There is much 
support out there for staff however, we must continue to improve the experience that staff have and 
proactively improve working conditions rather than offer retrospective support.  

 

8.4 In summary, we will continue to focus on developing a workforce strategy for primary care and build 
on the work that has taken place to date including strengthening our planning processes and working 
with our service and education providers to build a resilient, skilled and responsive workforce for the 
future.  

 

Page 20



 

 

 

 

What is this report about? 

Including how it contributes to the city’s and council’s ambitions 

 This report provides an update on the development of the Physical Activity (PA) Ambition for 

Leeds which is being led by Active Leeds and Public Health together with partners across 

the city: 

o Progress and priorities agreed at the Health and Wellbeing board and next steps 

o Covid-19 Response 

o Physical Activity Governance arrangements 

o Exploring the role of system leaders around physical activity 
 

 The report also gives a general update on the work of Active Leeds programmes and 

activities since the last update to the scrutiny board in late 2020.  
 

 Embedding physical activity into everyday life provides a unique opportunity to contribute to 

the three city strategic pillars of Inclusive Growth, Health and Wellbeing and Climate 

Change. This aligns with other key strategies such as Mental Health Strategy, Transport 

Strategy and developing the Local Plan. There is good evidence that the benefits of 

increasing physical activity are wide ranging including impact on employment and 

employability, promoting engagement and civic trust and reducing isolation. Realising the 

ambition to increase levels of physical activity has the potential to contribute to a healthier 

place, a greener city and a stronger local economy.  

Recommendations 

a) Note and comment on the content of the report. 
b) To note the progress on the Physical Activity ambition presented and support the proposed 

next stage priorities of Active Environments and Active People - Reconditioning. 
c) Support the establishment of the Physical Activity Partnership Board as part of governance 

arrangements. 
d) Agree to receive a further update on the review of the Active Leeds Active Life Programme 
e) Agree to receive further information around the formation, role and governance of the 

proposed Physical Activity Ambition Board 
 

Active Leeds and Physical Activity Ambition Update 

Date: 8th February 2022 

Report of: Head of Active Leeds 

Report to: Adults, Health and Active Lifestyles Scrutiny Board 

Will the decision be open for call in? ☐ Yes  ☒ No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt 
information? 

☐ Yes  ☒ No 

Report author: Steven Baker 

Tel:  07891 271026 

Page 21

Agenda Item 4



Why is the proposal being put forward?  

1. There is clear evidence that being active is essential for good physical and mental health and 
wellbeing. As well as being physically active, it is important that all adults and children 
minimise the time spent being sedentary for extended periods. Increasing physical activity 
levels has the potential to improve the physical and mental health and wellbeing of 
individuals, families and communities and reduce inequalities.  

2. The ambition is for Leeds to be the most active city in England. This is outlined in the Leeds 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy ‘Get More People, More Physically Active, More Often’ and is 
a key component of reaching our vision to be a healthy and caring city where people who are 
the poorest improve their health the fastest. 

3. Physical activity levels have flattened off in recent years and have significantly reduced due to 
the impact of Covid-19. Some groups in the population have been disproportionally affected 
including women, young people, disabled people, those with a long term health condition and 
those from a Black or Asian background. The most recent Active Lives surveys show the 
percentage of inactive adults in Leeds is 25.5%, 164,100 people aged 16+ are inactive (May 
2020 – May 2021) and only 50% of children in Leeds achieve the recommended one hour of 
physical activity a day. Inequalities have widened and lifestyle habits have changed – leading 
to less active and more sedentary hours. The “Build Back Fairer Covid-19 Marmot Review” 
highlighted that there are pre-existing inequalities in levels of physical activity related to 
socioeconomic position and that more advantaged groups tend to have higher levels of 
physical activity. Adults in higher occupational groups increased their levels of physical 
activity more than adults in lower occupational grades. 

4. Many older adults were negatively impacted due to the lockdown with many aged 70 years+ 
shielding. The “Build Back Fairer Covid-19 Marmot Review” also found that lockdowns and 
social isolation were much more harmful to people without access to gardens and this will 
have impacted on levels of physical activity and wellbeing. It also pointed out that being active 
outside can have a more positive mental health impact than other kinds of exercise. It is 
evident that there are a range of inequalities in physical activity levels and action is needed to 
address these. 

5. We have been able to operate most activities and classes for the majority of this financial year 
following the 3rd lockdown when we reassumed activities on the 12th of April 2021 for gym, 
swim, junior activities (gymnastics, swimming lessons etc) along with outdoor classes and 
activities. All facilities were opened on the 12th April using our Leeds Make a Comeback 
Campaign apart from Chippindale Pool and Fearnville Leisure Centre, due to resourcing and 
logistical issues (Fearnville remained a  a COVID testing facility). Like a lot of services we 
experienced staff shortages with some staff still being redeployed into other services to 
support them during the lockdown, and recruitment being restricted whilst we were closed. 
Indoor fitness classes and activities for adults resumed shortly after May 17th 2021, although 
there was still guidance in place to restrict numbers, pre booking, restricting access to 
equipment and other practices. These remained in place until the 19th July where the 
Government announced the move to the next step where all restrictions could be lifted and 
the service moved steadily to normal practices although keeping some procedures including 
customers cleaning down equipment, enhanced cleaning regime, some social distancing 
especially in facilities with logistical constraints and some on-line booking. Customers 
generally reacted well to these measures and through surveys customers expressed 
satisfaction with the balanced approach which was being taken.  

6. Fearnville Leisure Centre reopened on a restricted programme on the 28th June and 
Chippendale pool for the summer holidays on the 2nd August again with a restricted 
programme.  

Page 22

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=p5XiJjQ1puw
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=p5XiJjQ1puw


7. It was key for Active Leeds to get all facilities operational again as we saw during the 
lockdown access to facilities was key for activity levels to resume, especially in terms of team 
activities, and swimming which are hard to replicate online or at home exercising etc. This 
also had a big impact on reducing the activity rates for men and in particular men from Black 
and Asian communities as already highlighted above.  

What impact will this proposal have? 

 Physical Activity Ambition – Further progress and agreeing the priorities 

8. Working together, Public Health and Active Leeds and Parks and Countryside continue to 
drive forward the work for the Physical Activity Ambition for Leeds. As previously described to 
the Scrutiny Board in November 2020, the development of the new PA Ambition began with a 
city-wide conversation called “Get Set Leeds”. Get Set Leeds was a proactive engagement 
campaign which was the largest-ever study completed in Leeds around the importance of 
physical activity on the lives of over 4,000 residents. It gave people a chance to their share 
ideas on what getting active meant to them and what might support them to move more. It 
focused on identifying assets, barriers, and co-producing solutions. 

9. Four key messages emerged from the study analysis by Leeds Beckett University and are 
shaping the development of the Physical Activity Ambition:  

 Most people want to be physically active but find it hard to be – motivation isn’t enough. 

 People do not feel their environment makes it easy to be active, this includes having 
space to move and be active in, feeling safe, access to transport, child-care, good air 
quality and local information.  

 Inactive people want to be active, but feel they aren’t able to be or don’t know where to 
start. People worry about their basic needs before they can think about being active (e.g. 
access to housing, employment, food, education, technology, and good health).  

 Small changes to how capable people feel can lead to big changes in physical activity 
levels - for everyone in Leeds to be more active, it is important they feel they can be.  

Covid-19 response 

10. The significant impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on physical activity and in highlighting and 
widening existing inequalities in activity levels has also been reflected in the development of 
the Physical Activity Ambition and the response from the wider Active Leeds team.  

11. The pandemic emphasised how important physical activity is for physical and mental 
wellbeing particularly in terms of: 

 Deconditioning due to inactivity e.g. increasing the risk of falls, the impact on frailty and 
long term conditions.  

 Inactivity in children and impact on academic achievement, behaviour and mental health.  

 The importance of access to spaces and places to be active and the inequalities that 
exist. 

12. A Covid-19 Rapid Literature Review was undertaken with Leeds Beckett University between 
January 2021 – April 2021 to understand the impact of Covid-19 on physical activity. This 

Wards affected:  

Have ward members been consulted? ☐ Yes    ☐ No 

 

Page 23



research demonstrated the potential role of physical activity in contributing to recovery; 
physical and mental reconditioning, and rebuilding from Covid-19. Further information is 
provided in the Appendix 1 in the form of a short report summarising the research findings. 

13. An additional Covid-19 Rapid Literature review is currently being undertaking to ensure the 
Physical Activity Ambition continues to understand the impact of Covid-19 on Physical Activity 
and can ensure that up-to-date and relevant research and evaluation is being considered in 
the development of the Physical Activity Ambition priorities. 

14. Various pieces of work have been developed through the Physical Activity Ambition in 
response to the pandemic and to help Leeds to recover from its impacts. A few examples are 
highlighted below:  

 The “Get Set Leeds Local Project” is developing co-production networks and an ABCD 
asset based approach in priority localities. Through this way of working a number of 
community based ideas and projects have been delivered, for example; the development 
and distribution of play boxes through trusted partners in Seacroft, New Wortley and 
Beeston and Holbeck. This project was extended to people who have been shielding 
and/or have long term conditions via Sport England £50k funding.   

 Production and distribution of the Healthy at Home Booklet and the development of the 
Healthy at Home Website for people with Long Term Conditions and those previously 
asked to shield. This promoted moving more in and around the home alongside Covid-19 
messages and healthy living advice.  

 Contributing, influencing and connecting colleagues across transport, highways and 
active travel to develop Active Travel Neighbourhoods. This includes submitting a bid for 
the Department for Transport’s Walking, Cycling and Social Prescribing Fund and 
successfully obtaining feasibility funding to develop our proposal further. 

 Development of a series of Physical Activity Webinars for the wider workforce and Third 
Sector.  

 Love Exploring app launched to encourage more families to get out walking through 
augmented reality. It is a fun way to encourage families to be active together and inspire 
people of all ages to explore their local parks and discover some of the city’s cultural 
treasures. Love Exploring App - Halloween Walks 

 Continued communication through blogs and social media posts through the Get Set 
Leeds website and Leeds City Council social media channels promoting the benefits to 
physical and mental health of being active as well as key Covid-19 messages. 

15. To coincide with this there has also been lots of wider work by the Active Leeds team since 
resuming activities and programmes including focusing on readdressing some of the impact of 
covid on physical activity levels: 

 In November there was a This Girl Can Festival at John Charles Centre for Sport where 
over 100 young people from multiple schools across the city, came together to try a 
range of activities including: Team building, Yoga, Cricket & Pop Pilates. This coincides 
with the development of a specific teens magazine for girls LeedsGirlsCan Teen 
Magazine - Issue 3 - The World Sports Issue by LeedsGirlsCanTeens - Issuu 

 Work with Action for Sport and the BBC Kit out the Nation campaign where the leisure 
centres encourage people to donate usable sportswear – with 25 black bin bags full of 
clothing and footwear were donated to schools and community groups to distribute to 
children and families who need it. Equipment was also donated with over 300 brand new 
footballs from a local company that also went to under privileged children across Leeds.  

Page 24

https://www.instagram.com/tv/CVgPkTpoPt7/?utm_medium=share_sheet
https://issuu.com/leedsgirlscanteens/docs/_leeds_girls_can_magazine_issue_3
https://issuu.com/leedsgirlscanteens/docs/_leeds_girls_can_magazine_issue_3


 Supporting Black History month with a celebration of influential personalities in the world 
of sport and in the community, championing physical activity and sport. There were also 
free and discounted activities on offer across the leisure centres Monday 18th October – 
Sunday 24th October. BHM Sporting Hero Videos  

 The biggest Healthy Holiday programme ran during the summer holidays across 25 
venues and for the first time included free swimming lessons at the council’s leisure 
centres for children that have missed out in school swimming lessons over the pandemic. 
This initiative also including free swimming costumes and googles, along with swimming 
passes to encourage children to attend sessions outside their lessons. This was also 
repeated during October Half Term. There was a notable increase in behavioural issues 
identified during the sessions with it being identified that children highlighted the impact 
of the pandemic on their mental health. However, by the end of the sessions 
children/teachers/guardians/parents highlighted just how much they valued these 
sessions in terms of social interaction and confidence building.  

 Local engagement and working with the council communities team and residents and 
community chest funding has seen the establishment of South Leeds Valkyries a new all-
female basketball team in Beeston and Holbeck South Leeds Valkyries - YouTube . The 
development of a successful cycling hub at Cross Flatts, with the cycling hub model now 
being scaled in the Inner East of the City. Cross Flatts - Saturday Park Roll - YouTube 

.The team supported the opening a community gym at Dennis Healy Centre that will be 
used by young people in Seacroft Community Gym - YouTube. Holbeck Moor Sport and 
Active Lifestyle Fair GSLL Holbeck Moor Event - YouTube 

 The Active Leeds Positive Futures team have been working with local schools as part of 
their Inspiration programme aimed at primary school children in years 4-6, targeting the 
children who maybe low on confidence and have a low self-esteem after the pandemic. 
This project aims to encourage young people to engage positively through educational 
and recreational activities including wall climbing, mountain biking and archery, resulting 
in increased confidence, communication skills and resilience. Alongside the activities the 
positive futures team facilitate discussions around ASB, social media safety, bullying and 
mental health. Mount St Mary’s on the inspiration programme! 

 Supporting Asylum seekers and refugees to take part in activities including giving them 
sports clothing to enable them to take part. With free access given to leisure centre 
activities and developing online classes for groups to take part in.  

 Supporting sport clubs and organisation to keep going during the pandemic, but also 
enabling them to restart activities again by supporting the administration of over £1.3m of 
grants to community clubs.  

16. These are only some of the examples of the work taken place over the last year working with 
the communities hardest hit by the pandemic, where the team is really making a difference 
but there are lots more examples which the team will continue to establish links and co-
produce with local communities.  

17. Whilst considerable activity has been delivered across the City, the current funding 
arrangements require Active Leeds to target activity (and outcomes) in accordance with the 
funding regimes in place. The Service will be seeking to consider how best  it can widen its 
reach across the city but with a focus on the areas with most disadvantage and most health 
and physical activity inequality. It should however be noted that availability of resource is a 
significant limiting factor. 

 

 

Page 25

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=PMQ9ygAk0PA
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=KqRDBS-LIsk
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=EMpssVfa9-I
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=9NrMTqlVlnU
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=DYyJoXvoh2o
https://www.instagram.com/positive_futures_leeds/p/CWDi95_MaL-/?utm_medium=share_sheet


PA Ambition Priorities and Next Steps 

18. The Get Set Leeds conversations and Covid-19 review have shaped the shared ambition 
which is for Leeds to “Get More People, More Physically Active, More Often” and drive a 
radical cultural shift to increase physical activity requiring commitment over the long term. 
This shared ambition and its work programmes will be co-produced at all levels.  

19. In order to deliver the ambition to “Get More People, More Physically Active, More Often” 
action will be focused around four themes based upon the core ideas in the WHO Global 
Action Plan on Physical Activity 2018-2030 with reducing inequalities as a cross cutting aim: 

ACTIVE SOCIETY – In Leeds we will create a physical activity as part of everyday life 
where it is the easiest choice to be physically active every day. 
 
ACTIVE ENVIRONMENT - We will work with people to understand the external drivers 
affecting their physical activity levels. 
 
ACTIVE PEOPLE - We will work with identified target groups to create small changes to 
how capable they feel to be physically active every day and test new ways of working. 
 
ACTIVE SYSTEMS - We will work in partnership to create a healthier place, a greener city 
and a stronger local economy. 

20. In order to enable a more in-depth, co-produced and effective response, whilst recognising 
funding constraints, to the post pandemic challenges Active Environments and Active People 
– ‘Reconditioning’ have been selected as initial priorities for the Physical Activity Ambition. 
Inequalities will be a central theme for both with a particular focus on BAME communities. The 
Physical Activity Steering Group and the Health and Wellbeing Board have approved these 
priorities and the Physical Activity Ambition co-production approach. 

Proposed Priorities 

21. These priorities have been selected because they are: 

 Able to significantly impact on inequalities across the city. 

 Present genuine opportunities for cross-sector / cross-cutting co-production with 
communities and key stakeholders. 

 Emerging as key priorities from the Get Set Leeds Conversation and Covid-19 rapid 
review. 

 Aligned to city priorities - Inclusive Growth, Health and Wellbeing and Climate Change. 

 Areas where there is already momentum building and willingness to engage and a need 
to focus resource    

Active Environments                                         Active People - Reconditioning  

Active Travel                                                                              Young People – mental & physical health  

Get Set Leeds Local – priority neighbourhoods   Learning Disabilities                

Walking and cycling                                                                  Older People  - Shielders / At risk of falls                                                      

Influencing strategy and policy       Long Term Conditions/Long Covid 

Green Spaces 

 

Page 26



22. The next phase of the Physical Activity Ambition is the co-production of the two priorities with 
the people who live and work in Leeds. Scoping sessions have begun with the purpose of 
identifying more specific areas of focus within each of the two priority areas. A Leeds Physical 
Activity Ambition Co-Production Toolkit has been developed. This is a guidance document for 
everyone who is helping to make Leeds more active. It compliments and supports other key 
approaches in the city such as ABCD, Restorative Practice and Better Conversations.  

23. A co-design process with residents and stakeholders for both the Active Environments and 
Active People - Reconditioning priorities will enable an understanding of the assets, strengths 
and the improvements needed in each of these priorities. Identifying specific monitoring and 
evaluation measures for the priorities will also be a key part of this co-production process. 

Physical Activity Governance 

24. Progress is also being made around creating the Physical Activity Governance structure 
which involves the establishment of a Physical Activity Partnership Board. The Board will 
need to have a relationship and connection to various groups including the Health and 
Wellbeing Board, Inclusive Growth, Sport Leeds and Place Based Boards, Adults, Health and 
Active Lifestyles Scrutiny Board and existing partnerships within the City. The Partnership 
Board will provide strong systems leadership and accountability for the Physical Activity 
Ambition and action plans. The aims of the Partnership Board are to: 

 Articulate the power of being physically active in delivering city outcomes particularly in 
reducing inequalities. 

 Lead and activate change. 

 Focus on creating the right physical environment. 

 Take an all age/population approach.  

 Help to harness the power of people in communities to increase activity levels. 

 Create connections and links to embed physical activity across the system. 
 
25. Planning for recruitment to the Board is underway as this is a key step in developing the 

Physical Activity Ambition and is aimed at finding leaders who can provide strategic influence; 
those that will spearhead and champion different ways of working; and those who have 
influence within the two priority areas (Active People - Reconditioning and Active 
Environments). The Board will also include experts both in terms of a resident’s voice and 
academic / physical activity specialists.  

 
26. In addition to the proposed Ambition Board the following structures and delivery mechanisms 

are already in place: 

Design Group – operational, cross service including Active Leeds, Public Health, Health 
Partnerships, Leeds Beckett University and Comms & Marketing providing the support role to 
the PA Ambition. 

Physical Activity Ambition Steering Group – partnership including Public Health, Active 
Leeds, Economic Development, Health Partnerships, Human Resources and cross-sector 
representation including citizens voice Healthwatch, Sport England, Leeds Beckett University 
and Yorkshire Sport. The Steering Group is currently providing overall strategic direction for 
the PA Ambition until the Partnership Board is in place. 

Sub-Groups - for example Comms & Marketing, Co-production, Get Set Leeds – Local. 

Physical Activity Champions – Movers & Shakers, Leeds Girls Can, Walk and Ride 
Leaders. Further development is still needed to develop and formalise the role of Champions.  

  

Page 27



What consultation and engagement has taken place?  

27. Get Set Leeds engaged over 4,000 people through a citywide survey and focus groups. We 
are continuing to talk to those we have started conversations within priority neighbourhoods 
and with priority groups through focus groups and Leeds Girls Can. Attending community 
committee sessions. Working with communities and co-producing is at the heart of everything 
the service does as well as building partnerships as highlighted earlier in the report. 

28. The service has also conducted several surveys with customers using our services. They 
highlight good level of customer satisfaction levels with our recent Net Promoter Score (NPS) 
being 7.78 out of 10, which is an increase of 0.53 since the NPS survey Pre-COVID. 81% 
rated our cleanliness as brilliant or good and 82% of customers felt very safe at the leisure 
centres. 2 key areas to giving customers the confidence to come back during the pandemic.  

 

29. The service has also conducted surveys with customers in terms of their physical activity 
habits and commissioned Leeds Becket to do a COVID literature review which is captured in 
a short report in appendix 1. 

30. The service has also conducted a review of the Service’s Active Life programme which are a 
programme of activities aimed at older people. There has been lots of interest in the review of 
the programme and we have had over 600 people respond to the review which consisted of 
paper/online surveys, focus groups and meetings with current and past users. The review of 
this activity is currently being analysed and will be shared with the Scrutiny Bboard when 
complete to get input into the review and positive steps to improve the offer for older people 
across the leisure centre programmes.  

Page 28



What are the resource implications? 

Performance 

31. The social return on investment from increasing the numbers of people being more physically 
active is significant for the city including social, economic, physical and mental health benefits. 
Every £1 spent on community sport and physical activity generates nearly £4 for the economy 
and society based upon the findings of a recent study by Sheffield Hallam University.  

32. While total social value has fallen post pandemic (currently just under £500k per leisure 
centre site vs just over £700k per site in 2019) due to the total number people using the 
facilities and activities being less than pre-COVID, the average per person social value has 
increased to over £68 per person. This is influenced by returning participants spending more 
time being active and visiting leisure centres more often than pre-COVID which is 
encouraging to ensure people keep their exercising habits.  

33. The Service has received multiple award over the last 12/18 months including: 

 In September Active Leeds won the Association For Public Service Excellence (APSE) 
Best Service Sport, Leisure and Cultural Team Award. This highlighted the team’s hard 
work, resilience, creativity, and innovation in response over the pandemic and has given 
the service the recognition on a national level. Leeds City Council APSE Award   

 The service were also collective winners for a City Development Directorate team award 
and finalists in the whole council staff awards again for the response by the team over the 
pandemic.  

 The Council’s Leeds Community Tennis Programme was also crowned a national winner 
for the Communities and Parks Award at the prestigious Lawn Tennis Awards for the 
Service growing the sport in the region. Being recognised for its inspirational work 
adapting to Covid-19 restrictions and booming back to life after lockdown. Leeds 
Community Tennis Programme wins at 2021 LTA Tennis Awards .  

 Finally, the service were finalist in the Marketing Campaign of the Year category in the 
UKActive awards 2021 for our Love Yourself campaign Active Leeds Love Yourself 
Campaign .   

 In addition the swim, diving and synchronised swimming teams have received a number 
of medals across championships for all the disciplines Special win for Leeds 
(swimming.org) 

34. The financial position of the Service remains challenging. The Service is forecasted to 
overspend in 21/22 ,  due to the impact of income loss due to COVID capacity restrictions to 
£4.3m, primarily in respect of swimming and membership income loss. Of this projected 
income loss, £1.7m relates to the first quarter and an element of this is recoverable through 
the Government’s income compensation scheme. The income loss is also partially offset by 
staffing and running cost savings, resulting in an overall projected overspend for the service of 
£3.7m. It is hoped that the position for 22/23 will be more positive, currently the Service’s 
memberships and activities are showing a positive return to pre-Covid levels with Over 20,000 
health and fitness members.  

 Just under 9,000 on swimming lessons programme.  

 90% of all school swimming happening in the council pools (Up by 4% pre-Covid)  

 Swimming 85% of pre-Covid attendances (Swimming numbers have increased faster) 

 Gym 75% of pre-Covid attendances. 

 Fitness Classes 80% of pre-Covid attendances. 

 Junior programmes growing back to pre-covid levels – Gymnastics and Tennis. 

Page 29

https://youtu.be/xOJH-lJ5PB8?list=PLAB80rRj0f7_8pXyL2ql5f9WU2PWiCjvR
https://www.lta.org.uk/about-us/tennis-news/news-and-opinion/general-news/2021/june/leeds-community-tennis-programme-wins-communities-and-parks-award-at-2021-lta-tennis-awards/
https://www.lta.org.uk/about-us/tennis-news/news-and-opinion/general-news/2021/june/leeds-community-tennis-programme-wins-communities-and-parks-award-at-2021-lta-tennis-awards/
https://youtube.com/watch?v=6TQl1W07-zY&feature=share
https://youtube.com/watch?v=6TQl1W07-zY&feature=share
https://www.swimming.org/artistic-swimming/virtual-combo-cup-division-one/
https://www.swimming.org/artistic-swimming/virtual-combo-cup-division-one/


 Training schemes (Swimming, Diving and Synchronised swimming teams) number are 
near pre-COVID levels.  

 
35. But there remains some work in fully returning income levels to their budgeted position In 

addition there is more work to do to encourage more casual sports bookings (badminton, 
squash, table tennis etc) as these were the last activities to resume and will take more time to 
grow these numbers. It is encouraging to see our health programmes resuming back and 
numbers have been positive since October last year and they are continuing to grow. 
However again as this is a group that has been hit hard by shielding there is more work 
required to encourage everyone back and adapting the services is instrumental to this.  

 
36. Health and fitness monthly new joiners figures have been up month on month by 10-15% 

compared to 2019 figures since September last year and currently January figures is on target 
to be the most new joiners in one month that the service have ever recorded and being 20% 
above January 2019 figures. There were also positive figures recorded for our promotions for 
Black Friday weekend and over the Christmas period. 

 

37. There has been encouraging signs that we are also seeing new people to the service, with 
our junior health and fitness members increasing. More people coming from deprived wards 
than previously although still lower overall in participation figures compared to other Indices of 
Multiple Deprivation (IMD) groups. Females account for more than 48% of our membership 
base which is more than males at just over 43% (the remaining prefer not to say) but males 
have returned to activities quicker. There are more people over the age of 60 using the 
services again, but again the numbers remain lower overall. The average age of our 
membership base now sits at over 43 years of age.  

 

38. The service have worked hard over the last 9 months to deliver improvements to the leisure 
centres which include:  

 

 Pudsey Leisure Centre: reception upgrade and redecoration and flooring through all 
circulation areas, a new virtual spin room and refurbishment to the gym (hopefully 
complete by 23rd Dec) alongside new branding. Also includes over £150k worth of new 
gym equipment.  

 Garforth Leisure Centre: new studio created, new virtual spin room, refurbed gym and 
redecoration and branding through circulation areas. This also includes over £160k worth 
of new gym equipment 

 Rothwell Leisure Centre: redecoration and flooring through circulation spaces, 
redecoration of pool hall and branding along with redecoration and virtual added to the 
spin room.  

 Kippax Leisure Centre: refurbishment of the wetside changing rooms and redecoration 
and flooring throughout the building including spectator seating area over the pool and 
pool hall. 

 John Charles CS tennis centre: Resurfacing of all tennis courts inside and out (although 
still to finish some outdoor courts when the weather improves)  

 John Charles CS: refurbishment to site office areas and creation of livestreaming studio. 
(Due gym refurbishment in the March 2022)  

 
39. On top of this several sites are part of the £10m investment into the Council’s Public Sector 

Decarbonisation Programme to help the service reduce the carbon footprint, which is vital as 
we see increases in energy costs whilst reducing our impact on the environment as leisure 
facilities are major consumers of energy.  

 
40. The service has invested in improving the digital journey for customers working with 

colleagues in the Informational Digital Service to install a new leisure management system in 
November. This has also seen developments to the APP which continues to grow in use and 
popularity with over 60,000 downloads being reached. The Service’s course programme 

Page 30



system (Learn 2) , marketing and communications, feedback mechanisms and the bringing of 
the direct debits back in house have also be part of the move over to the new system. There 
is still lots to do, but we will continue to improve the access of our services to reach more 
people. There have also been enhancements to our livestreaming services, installed virtual 
group exercise class system at Middleton Leisure Centre and more virtual cycling and 
development of the mywellness system (Personal Fitness Plans for people to track their 
health and physical activities improvements) are coming in February. There will be further 
developments in the Services customer service centre with more site’s telephone systems 
being moved over in February freeing up vital time for the teams to deal with customers in 
person.  

 
41. Staffing and recruitment have been a challenge since the service resumed. However there 

has been lots of work on the employee journey over the last 6 months which has resulted in 
new ways of recruiting and removing barriers to access the service such as formal 
qualifications. We are more focused on the people that join the service reflecting our values 
and ensuring they are the right fit for the service and to help people to get active. We have 
moved to a position of recruiting for aptitude and training for skill. The team have been 
working with schools, universities and other organisations to ensure the service is more 
representative of the communities we serve and the team are doing some research about 
how we can encourage more applications from BAME communities for example. Further work 
will take place over the next year to ensure we are supporting career journeys and investing in 
the right development paths for the staff. Active Leeds like other services have had staff that 
have taken on extra responsibilities during this time and the Service is very grateful for the 
staff groups flexibility, adaptability and resilience throughout the most challenging of 
circumstances.  

 

42. The service has invested in staff training with most of the fitness team now qualified to level 3 
fitness qualification enabling them to deal with more people with health conditions. To 
coincide with the increase in more juniors using our services the team have also gained 
specific qualifications aimed at supporting adolescents to ensure juniors are getting a great 
experience and the right support for their individual needs. The Service’s training team have 
been busy delivering nearly 130 first aid and livesaving courses as well as retaining our 
excellent rating for Approved Training Centre for the Royal Life Saving Society accreditation 
on top of all the standard training the team have delivered with lots going online which 
enables us to make it easier for staff to access.  

 

43. There has been work to implement new customer journeys which will be the cornerstone of 
ensuring we give everyone who touches our service a fantastic experience to keep them 
going on their physical activity journeys but also they encourage others too. Building on these 
standards Morley Leisure Centre are the first site to record an excellent result in their recent 
Leisure Standard QUEST assessment which highlights all the good things we already have in 
place. All the leisure centres also go through periodic mystery shops to monitoring customer 
service levels and these are used to ensure standards are at there highest levels.  

44. Attracting funding into the service is key to enable us to deliver all the activities and 
programmes but there is a limit to this funding and the Physical Activity Ambition work is 
funded through time limited grants and this project is working to achieve long term 
behavioural change, consideration needs to be given to the sustainability of the resources to 
fully realise the benefits. 

45. Public Health, Active Leeds, Health Partnerships, Parks and Countryside, Planning and 
Transport colleagues all collaborate and lead the project along with contributions from 
partners in the Place Based Partnership, Sport Leeds Board, Leeds Becket University, and 
the Third Sector. The Council is keen to ensure all agencies across the City focus on working 
together as a City  to make sustained and noticeable improvements to physical activity levels 
in the City.  

Page 31



What are the legal implications?  

46.  There are no legal implications arising from this report 

 

What are the key risks and how are they being managed? 

47. There is still some uncertainty about how the income levels will resume over the next year, 
however the Service have developed new service developments and opportunities to 
continue to improve the financial performance of the service.  

48. Staffing levels are not returning to pre-Covid levels is also a risk to ensure we can continue to 
deliver the level of service required especially with current covid sickness rates. However, 
work being undertaken as described in the report to recruit more people will start to pay off to 
increase staffing numbers.  

49. In the future it is envisaged that Physical Activity Ambition work will be governed through the 
new Physical Activity Ambition Board governance structures, currently in development. In the 
meantime, there is a Physical Activity Ambition Steering Group in place to take overall 
responsibility for this work. 

Does this proposal support the council’s three Key Pillars? 

☒ Inclusive Growth  ☒ Health and Wellbeing  ☒ Climate Emergency 

  

Options, timescales and measuring success  
  
What other options were considered? 

 
50. None.  

  
How will success be measured? 
 

5.1 The Physical Activity Ambition has a monitoring and evaluation framework that is being 
created in partnership with academic and evaluation partners. It will include a range of 
indicators developed and baselined to measure progress at both a systems and intervention 
level. 
 

52. The service will also continue to measure activity levels through the active lives survey, a long 
with service specific key performance indicators such as membership new joiners, 
membership yields, course programme utilisation, activity and participation figures, 
expenditure and income, staffing levels, social value indications and equality and diversity 
targets etc.  
 

What is the timetable for implementation? 
 

53. It is envisaged that the Physical Activity Ambition board will be setup by the start of next 
financial year and detailed plans will be shared in terms of the governance arrangements.  

  

Appendices 
 

54. Appendix 1: Covid-19 Rapid Literature Review Short Report – Leeds Beckett’s University 
 

55. Appendix 2: Additional case study examples highlighting Active Leeds programmes.  
 

Background papers  
 

56. None 

Page 32



1 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
COVID-19 Rapid Reviews 

Short Report  

April 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 33



2 
 

COVID-19 
As a highly transmissible disease, coronavirus (COVID-19) required physical distancing protocols 

and/or self-isolation. In response, worldwide, governments mandated movement restrictions using 

quarantine and lockdowns.  These restrictions have had severe impacts worldwide on the health 

system and daily life.  

Approach 
In order to successfully plan future strategies, it was seen as vital to understand the impact COVID-19 

has had on health and lifestyles.  Leeds Beckett University was commissioned to undertake a rapid 

review of the COVID-19 evidence base. From January to April 2021, fortnightly reviews were 

undertaken. At the end of every two-week period, Leeds Beckett University would present back the 

findings, implications, and recommendations for the topic areas chosen. Following these 

presentations, discussions were held to inform on the next two-week period and come to consensus 

on the most important topics to cover next. 

The topics covered were:  

 Change in Physical Activity  

 Physical Activity and Prevention of COVID-

19 

 Health Conditions and Shielders  

 BAME, Diabetes and Physical Activity  

 Mental Health and Physical Activity 

 Deprivation and Social Determinants of 

Health  

 Deconditioning and Disabled Individuals  

 Recovering from Disasters and Resilience  

 Long-Covid 

 Access to Health Care 

 Children and Young People 

 LGBT  

 Workplaces  

Key Findings 
1. Physical activity has decreased, sedentary time has increased, but physical activity has 

preventive benefits to COVID-19  

Findings suggest a decrease in physical activity, with this decrease seen across all domains of activity 

(moderate, vigorous, MVPA, and walking). Along with the decrease in physical activity, there was also 

a significant rise in sedentary behaviour. Even short-term physical inactivity (1-4 weeks) has been 

associated with decreased health, but with the prolonged time spent at home, it is likely more health 

problems will ensue from the lack of activity. While physical activity levels pre-pandemic were low, it 

is now an even bigger problem as activity has further decreased. Based on previous evidence around 

other similar infections diseases, engaging in physical activity promotes positive health benefits, 

including improved immune system response and lower risk of severe future complications. 

Therefore, physical activity should be promoted to prevent future coronavirus contraction. 

2. Long-covid impacts 10% of people, many people suffering long-term problems  

Long-covid, or prolonged illness after COVID-19, can have many negative effects including: inability to 

engage, lack of aspiration, attention, planning, poor emotional control, higher anxiety levels and lost 

routines. It is unknown exactly how long individuals with long-covid will be impacted, so it will require 

carefully planned interventions which focus on the recovery of these individuals are needed in 

conjunction with medical professionals for the more serious cases. It is also a long-term problem, as 

people can suffer from long-covid for over 12+ weeks.  

Page 34



3 
 

3. Mental health problems have increased  

Physical activity can potentially protect against depression, anxiety and poor mental health. However, 

the decline in physical activity levels during COVID-19 has been associated with increased stress, 

anxiety, and depression. Interestingly, those who participated in more physical activity during the 

pandemic was associated with more positive mental health. It is therefore increasingly important to 

promote physical activity and building other factors such as confidence in one’s own ability and 

drawing on the social support of reduced social networks, which can protect against common mental 

health problems.  

4. The pandemic has led to the widening of the inequalities gap 

While the pandemic has affected regions differently over the course of the pandemic, the close 

association between underlying health, deprivation, occupation and ethnicity and COVID-19 have 

made living in more deprived areas in some regions particularly hazardous. The declines in income 

since March 2020 have been unequal, and lower-income groups have lost a greater proportion of their 

income from earnings than better-off groups. During the COVID-19 pandemic, housing has also 

become an even greater determinant of health and wellbeing. Additionally, BAME groups are more 

greatly impacted; in relation to their white counterparts, individuals who are black ethnicity are 4x 

more likely to die from COVID-19.  This highlights that inequalities in health behaviours should be a 

priority action area and interventions should be developed to improve healthy behaviours and reduce 

inequalities. 

5. In this for the ‘long haul’, long road to recovery – community engagement is essential for 

re-building  

Findings suggest that disaster exposure, such as a pandemic, continues to impact quality of life for 

many years, though the nature and duration of these impacts vary and may be influenced by factors 

such as age, gender, education, and vocation. Individuals reactions vary, but there is a common 

pattern among individuals exposed directly or vicariously to life-threatening events. Overall people 

experience a range of emotional responses at different phases of a disaster. It can take between 6-36 

months to recover from a disaster; it is important to note that there is no quick fix and will take a while 

to get back to pre-disaster levels. It is essential to engage the community at a local level for successful 

recovery. Communities will need to be empowered to identify those groups who are missing out or 

struggling themselves.  

Implications 
Leeds pre-COVID findings in have been compared to the findings from the rapid review. Key 

implications are provided in the following table.  

Previous Get Set Leeds Findings COVID-19 Implications 

Inactive people prioritised meeting their basic 
needs before being more active 

COVID-19 widened the inequalities gap; it is 
likely more people will be worse off than before 
the pandemic. Therefore, more people will 
need to focus on their basic needs and physical 
activity won’t be a priority. This highlights the 
need for social and environmental factors to be 
more supportive 

Inactive people want to be active, but feel they 
aren’t able to be 

This is just as, if not, more important now in a 
COVID and post-COVID-19 world. New barriers 
or competing interests/concerns may now 

Page 35



4 
 

exist. This highlights the continual need for 
social and environmental factors to be 
supportive 

Changes across the system to improve 
capability had the greatest impact on physical 
activity 

With even less access and the additional fear 
around COVID-19, it has probably led to greater 
feelings of reduced capability. It remains 
important to re-activate capability, so 
individuals are enabled to be active 

LGBT groups were identified as a key target 
group 

Results indicated that LGBT groups felt they 
needed more dedicated environments that are 
socially supportive and more inclusive. The 
research on COVID-19 suggests that LBGT 
should remain a key target group moving 
forward and that LGBT individuals may have 
been disproportionally impacted 

Employees felt their workplaces should focus 
on supporting them to be physically active 

Physical activity has decreased and new 
challenges of working from home require a new 
approach from employers 

Employers need to provide flexible working 
practices, create a culture where active working 
is the norm and empower employees to move 
more 

This is still important remains important for 
employees – COVID has demonstrated that 
flexible working can work successfully, and 
employees still want this option post-pandemic 

 

Recommendations 
Four key recommendations have arisen from the research. These are:  

1. Reactivate feelings of capability and motivation, and provide opportunities to re-engage in 

activity – it is now more important than ever to ensure people feel able and encouraged to 

be active, while providing safe opportunities to do so.  

2. Physical activity may not be a priority for most people; consider how to approach and 

encourage this behaviour - basic needs such as income or housing will be more important, 

and we need to consider how to approach and encourage physical activity in a compassionate 

way, while acknowledging and sharing struggles with others. 

3. Address new barriers or competing interests/concerns – COVID-19 has brought in new 

barriers to being physically active. It is likely many individuals will still be cautious and worried 

about engaging in activity in a post-COVID environment. These barriers will need to be 

considered and strategies will need to be implemented to reduce them. 

4. Accent supportive social and environmental factors - With restrictions easing, there are now 

opportunities to see friends and family again, need to take advantage of this and provide the 

chance to make small changes to their daily lives. It will be important to activate the idea of 

‘N5’ by offering programmes that are near, now, no-cost or low cost, new, and next-wise.  

Conclusion  
The findings from this research can be used to as an indicator as to what’s changed as a result of 

COVID-19 and provides recommendations for how to continue to support Leeds in its journey to 

becoming more active.  COVID-19 has greatly impacted individuals lives, approaches to public health, 

and the wider system. By applying it directly to the city of Leeds context, it enables a clear picture of 

what’s needed to continue to support people living in Leeds in becoming more active. 

Page 36



5 
 

Recommendations outline wider system changes that account for COVID-19 and the new challenges 

that have arisen. The results from this research will be used to adapt and rethink future action plans, 

while continuing to co-produce a physical activity ambition plan.  

 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



CROSS FLATTS PARK
CYLCING FESTIVAL

Get Set Leeds Local

On Tuesday 17th August the Get Set Leeds
Local team joined up with multiple
organisations to host the Cycling festival at
Cross Flatts park. With the new park bike
container established, funded through
British Cycling Places to Ride and Active
Leeds, this was the perfect opportunity to
welcome people from the local community
to get involved and try a wide range of
activities including balance bikes, BMX and
riding a traffic free route around the park.

Over 300 people attended the event
throughout the day creating a massive
buzz in the park. Children taking part in
Cycle Norths activity loved making their
way through the noodle bridges and limbo
on their balance bikes. The teeter totter
and bubble machine were also extremely
popular bringing smiles all around. 

But it wasn’t just the children having all
the fun. With British Cycling creating a
traffic free route around the park both
young people and adults jumped on bikes
to ride the route. It was great to see
families riding together in their local
park and talking about how they plan on
returning to ride in their own time. 

Page 39



In addition to the cycling activities the
Big Bike Fix were supporting people by
carrying out safety checks on their bikes.
They provided minor repairs and shared
information on what they do, and ways
can support in the future. 

 

Alongside the Big Bike Fix repairing
people’s bikes, we were also joined by
Fran from the Police and the LCC
Influencing Travel Behaviour Team,
offering the service of tagging bikes and
registering them with Bike Register. Both
services really helped educate the
community on safety around owning a
bike. People expressed as a result they
felt more confident going out on their own
bike knowing it was tagged, registered
and mechanically safe to ride. Multiple organisations including City

Connect, Dewsbury Road Hub, Project Dev
Team, Health for all, and Your space
created positive conversations with the
public informing them of upcoming
opportunities to get involved in cycling
including women only led rides. People
attending said that it was great to hear
about so many services and offers that
are available. 

Page 40



We would like to say thank you to all the
organisations involved in making the event
such a success with a range of activities,
give aways, borrowed bikes, advice,
support and conversations created around
cycling in Cross Flatts park. Additionally, a
big thank you to Watsonian Café who
stayed open to support the event and to
Lord Mayor Cllr Khan who visited to meet
and greet and Cllr Gabriel for attending. 

 

Not only did the public get to hear about
any future opportunities around cycling
but with Hamara’s help they also got to
hear about the history of the bike at their
stall. Alongside this they provided
refreshments to all who attended on the
day.

 

Overall, the event was a huge success in
creating a local buzz around cycling in
the community. With smiles all around it
was clear to see the activities were a hit
and people were really inspired to get on
a bike, ride and get active. 

A huge thank you from us all at the GSLL
team.

 

Page 41



Leah Case Study 

 

Leah regularly attends activities at Holt Park and now OPAL. Leah suffers with depression, has 

arthritis in her spine, osteoarthritis in both knees and moves outdoors using an electric wheelchair. 

Leah has struggled coping with family sickness, loss of friends and family members which has taken 

its toll on her. Leah only ventures outdoors to attend appointments, health/exercise activities & 

shopping as she worries about getting covid. 

Leah attends the classes with her carer who helps her get in and out of her car and carry some of her 

equipment as she steers her electric wheelchair.  

Life before the Covid pandemic Leah was very active attending weekly classes of Chair Based 

Exercise classes, Tai Chi, Hydro or swimming once a month and the gym every Monday (using the 

cycle, rower, the leg press & leg extension). 

During the pandemic she feels that the past two years of restrictions have affected her physical 

health and she has noticed deterioration in her strength, balance and stamina as she tired more 

through the day during low effort movements.  

Leah says her confidence ~went downhill” she panics when she falls at home as she lives alone and 

has to call the ambulance to assist her off the floor back into her chair. Leah is able to move around 

her flat using crutches or a rollater and can drive to the shops in her own car for weekly groceries 

with her carers. 

Since the pandemic Leah joined Active Leeds “Keep Moving” class which enabled her to gain more 

confidence but unfortunately stopped due to staff shortages. Leah found it difficult to find physical 

activity since the chair based class and Keep moving circuits stopped on the Wednesday at Holt Park. 

Denise spoke to Leah about an opportunity to attend a strength and balance course every week at 

OPAL and a hydrotherapy session at Holt park that complimented the former session with more 

support from the water. Leah’s first entry to the hydrotherapy session required her to use two 

noodles and the walls to assist her movement in the water, in 6 weeks Leah is able to move without 

the use of noodles and the wall for the majority of the session, her improvements have been 

inspirational as her confidence, enjoyment and her ability have grown immensely. 

Leah says the strength and balance course at OPAL has helped her to get up from the floor if she 

falls, as she followed our guidance on taking a moment to stop and think before trying to get up, she 

has a plan on how to get back up from the floor safely and effectively when she is on the floor. (Leah 

uses the steps in her home to help her back up from the floor). 

Leah started the strength and balance programme to get her confidence back and build strength in 

her arms & legs. Leah’s initial goals and motivations when joining the programme were to raise her 

fitness levels, lose weight and correct her balance issues. Now she has started she wants to improve 

her mobility and stamina more. After the programme Leah aims to continue with her current 

activities, attend a tai chi class in the place of Strength and balance and attend a hydrotherapy 

session if her finances permits her. 

Her Functional ability (around the house, to the shops etc) has improved as she tries to use less 

support, using her crutch or rollator around her ground floor flat (which has been adapted for her 

needs).  

Page 42



 

Leah uses music to help lift her mood and improve her Wellbeing/Mental Health as well as exercise. 

Leah is a musician and played christmas songs on the xylophone and bongos and brought in some 

rattles for everyone to join in on our last strength and balance session of 2021. 

 

“ I often get lost in music. I use it as part of my therapy. I must say, I'm really passionate about my 

music and believe it plays a significant part in my daily life. I find it stimulating, relaxing, enjoyable 

and  touching, it often brings back memories and forcefully resound with my feelings which enables 

me to articulate them and share with others.” 

Quotes: 

“I like how the trainer(s) motivate and encourage me to do my best; able to meet me at my level and 

relief any anxiety I have. Even when I think it’s impossible to do a particular exercise, the trainer 

makes it possible.” 

She would recommend to family and friends because “the programme is tailor made and it’s 

inclusive.” 

 

 

 

 

Page 43



Mrs J Case Study 
 

Programmes currently attending:  KWAH, Hydrotherapy, Strength & Balance confidence building and the 
enhanced confidence building course. 
 

 
 
 
 
Having COVID 19 in March 2020, I went on to develop Long Covid 
symptoms and these symptoms greatly impacted on my health.  I have an 
autoimmune disease similar to Lupus which affects my muscles and joints 
and was causing me mobility problems.  Covid symptoms left me with 
increased pain, chronic fatigue and breathlessness. 
 
The Covid Recovery Team recommended that I contact Active Leeds Health 
Programmes team for support. 
 
I started on the KWAH programme, which I was able to do in my own 
home.  Gently and very gradually I increased the level of activity I was able 
to cope with, over a couple of months my level of breathing, mobility, pain 
and fatigue have returned to pre-covid levels.   
 

I was then offered a 6-week course of Hydrotherapy, this was great. It gave me a great boost of energy for the 
weekend. I enjoy it greatly.  The warm of the water helps me move easier and without pain.  With the support of the 
water, I can work on my balance. I don’t have the fear of falling when in the water. 
 
Hydro and the exercises at home are also really helping me cope with my illness.   My weight has also gone down by 
about a stone due to the exercise and this is also helping my general health.  
 
Progression:  Strength and Balance programme 
 
I have now moved on to the Strength and balance exercises which I do in the community.  I used to do all the 
exercises seated but I am now able to do some standing, this is really helping my confidence and balance.   

Comments from Mrs J 

 

‘These classes provide gentle exercises, with individual guidance on how not to hurt yourself or 
inflame your condition’ 

 
 

‘I now have exercises which I can do seated or even lying in bed on a bad day.  Brilliant!’ 
 

 
‘When I go into a downward spiral, like now, I can cope better and get back to chair exercises much 

faster’ 
 

 
 

Page 44



 

Leeds Dock Relay 2021 

The first Leeds Dock relay event took place in 2019, and as a result of how well the event was 
received it was decided that this would become an annual event. Then 2020 happened and a 
small matter of a global pandemic stood in our way, so we were very keen to have the event 
back up and running in 2021.  
 
Importantly Active Leeds have worked really hard to influence the physical environment at 
Leeds Dock and we have built capacity by co-creating a range of activities and events in the 
area – The creation of its own Sports Club offering Running, Cycling and Kayaking has been a 
huge success-  it really is a unique spot to get active.  
 
The event took place down at Leeds Dock on Thursday 19th August, the Royal Armouries 
supported the event by allowing access to the square for the event start and finish Expo. Allied 
London – the landowners of the dock also greatly supported the event by helping with 
promotion, access, security and use of the facilities. Leeds GoodGym also provided a great 
support to the event, with advertising it as one of their community missions in order to help 
with course marshalling.  
 
This year saw the return of just a single open 
race, and we increased the capacity of numbers 
to allow more teams from across the city to 
enter. The event format remained the same, 
with teams of up to 4 people tasked with 
completing as many laps of the approximate 1 
mile course in a one hour time frame. Tokens 
were given to team members after completing a 
lap, and taken back to the rest of team to collect 
and be counted at the end of the race. 
The event attracted the attention of various local 
running clubs such as South Leeds Lakers, Roundhay Runners, Crossgate Harriers and a 
number of corporate teams from businesses across the city made for a vibrant atmosphere. 
The nights format also meant that the event was very inclusive and allowed for a range of 
different abilities all to be taking part together.  

Page 45



 

After a difficult 18 months and previous lack of access to 
bigger capacity local events, it was fantastic to see so 
many people taking part in a safe inspiring way. The 
event brought together people from all corners of the 
City - who all donated to support the development and 
establishment of the new running club Recovery Runners 
– who are aiming to support those struggling or 
recovering from an addiction through the medium of 
running. More information about the Recovery Runners 
can be seen here. 
The event wouldn’t have been able to be a success 
without the support from all the staff and volunteers 

who gave up their time to help – so a big thank you to you all! 
We have had some great feedback for the event, and we look forward to the next event in 
2022! 
“The 8 people I came with loved it and we will definitely be making this an annual event. 

The marshals/organisation/atmosphere were all great      ” 

 

 

 

 

Page 46



 

 

 

 
 

Page 47



LEEDS
GIRLS CAN 

In 2020 Leeds Girls Can worked closely with Women's Health
Matters WOW project to deliver online dance sessions. The
sessions were a huge success in engaging women to become
more active, try something new and build positive relationships.
Along with the delivery of the virtual dance sessions lead by
ambassador Susan, Leeds Girls Can also provided sports bras
to the ladies, educating them on how to measure themselves to
ensure the correct fit and support. 

Due to the success of the sessions Leeds Girls Can and the
WOW project arranged for the women to engage in 7 weeks of
face to face multi activity sessions at Scotthall Leisure Centre.

& WOW
PROJECT

Over the 7 week programme, 22 women seeking asylum aged 21-80 took part in a range
of activities including  pop pilates, badminton, football, dance and circuits. Alongside the
fun activities the women also received donated trainers as part of the Leeds Girls Can
donation scheme. With the amazing support from Scotthall Leisure centre and Leeds Girls
Can ambassadors we were able to meet the WOW projects aims of supporting women in
Leeds to feel less isolated, build friendships, become more active and improve mental
wellbeing. 

The delivery of the virtual classes and private face to face multi sports sessions has
provided essential stepping stones in building the women's confidence to attend Active
Leeds Leisure centres independently. 

Page 48



POSITIVE FUTURES
INSPIRATIONS

R U T H  G O R S E  S E P T  2 0 2 1

In September the Positive Futures team delivered their inspirations programme with students from Ruth Gorse. The programme is designed
to support young people in trying new physical activities resulting in increased confidence, communication skills and resilience. Alongside
the activities the positive futures team facilitate discussions around ASB, social media safety, bullying and mental health. The 12 young
people selected from Ruth Gorse faced barriers when engaging in school due to multiple factors such as; bereavement, low self-esteem and
adjusting to the impact of covid-19. During their time on the inspirations programme the students developed strong positive relationships
with positive futures staff, allowing them to express personal concerns and welcome support. The young people took part in mountain biking
at Leeds Urban Bike hub pushing many out of their comfort zones but resulting in smiles all around. The following week the young people
visited Leeds Sailing Centre where they took on team challenges and kayaking. Although many found it difficult to communicate effectively
during the team building, by the afternoon students were providing support to one another and encouraging those who had concerns about
taking part in the water activity. 

In the short space of time spent with Ruth Gorse, the Positive Futures team saw a real positive impact which the inspirations programme
had on the young people. Not only did the students get more active, their confidence levels increased, they developed their communication
skills and when pushed out of their comfort zones they showed admirable resilience and peer support. 

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

What is this report about? 
Including how it contributes to the city’s and council’s ambitions 

 

 All Scrutiny Boards are required to determine and manage their own work schedule for the 
municipal year.  In doing so, the work schedule should not be considered a fixed and rigid 
schedule, it should be recognised as a document that can be adapted and changed to 
reflect any new and emerging issues throughout the year; and also reflect any timetable 
issues that might occur from time to time. 
 

 The Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules also state that, where appropriate, all terms of 
reference for work undertaken by Scrutiny Boards will include ‘ to review how and to what 
effect consideration has been given to the impact of a service or policy on all equality areas, 
as set out in the Council’s Equality and Diversity Scheme’. 
 

 The latest iteration of the Board’s work schedule is attached to this report for the Board’s 
consideration. 
 

 

Recommendations 

Members are requested to consider and discuss the Scrutiny Board’s work schedule for the 

2021/22 municipal year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Work Schedule 

Date: 8th February 2022 

Report of: Head of Democratic Services 

Report to: Scrutiny Board (Adults, Health and Active Lifestyles) 

Will the decision be open for call in? ☐ Yes  ☒ No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? ☐ Yes  ☒ No 

Report author: Angela Brogden 

Tel: 0113 3788661 

Page 51

Agenda Item 5



Why is the proposal being put forward?  
 

1. All Scrutiny Boards are required to determine and manage their own work schedule for the 
municipal year and therefore the latest iteration of the Board’s work schedule for the 
remainder of the municipal year is attached as Appendix 1 for Members’ consideration. 

 
Developing the work schedule 
 

2. When considering any developments and/or modifications to the work schedule, effort 
should be undertaken to: 

 

 Avoid unnecessary duplication by having a full appreciation of any existing forums 
already having oversight of, or monitoring a particular issue. 

 Ensure any Scrutiny undertaken has clarity and focus of purpose and will add value 
and can be delivered within an agreed time frame. 

 Avoid pure “information items” except where that information is being received as part 
of a policy/scrutiny review. 

 Seek advice about available resources and relevant timings, taking into consideration 
the workload across the Scrutiny Boards and the type of Scrutiny taking place. 

 Build in sufficient flexibility to enable the consideration of urgent matters that may arise 
during the year. 

 

3. In addition, in order to deliver the work schedule, the Board may need to take a flexible 
approach and undertake activities outside the formal schedule of meetings – such as 
working groups and site visits, where necessary and appropriate.  This flexible approach 
may also require additional formal meetings of the Scrutiny Board. 
 

Developments since the previous Scrutiny Board meeting 
 

4. There have been no significant developments to report since the previous meeting. 
 

What impact will this proposal have? 

 

5. All Scrutiny Boards are required to determine and manage their own work schedule for the 
municipal year. 
 

What consultation and engagement has taken place?  
 

6. The Vision for Scrutiny also states that Scrutiny Boards should seek the advice of the 
Scrutiny officer, the relevant Director and Executive Member about available resources 
prior to agreeing items of work. 

 
What are the resource implications? 
 

7. Experience has shown that the Scrutiny process is more effective and adds greater value if 

the Board seeks to minimise the number of substantial inquiries running at one time and 

focus its resources on one key issue at a time.    

 

Wards affected: All 

Have ward members been consulted? ☐ Yes    ☐No 

 

Page 52



8. The Vision for Scrutiny, agreed by full Council also recognises that like all other Council 

functions, resources to support the Scrutiny function are under considerable pressure and 

that requests from Scrutiny Boards cannot always be met.   

 

9. Consequently, when establishing their work programmes Scrutiny Boards should: 

 Seek the advice of the Scrutiny officer, the relevant Director and Executive Member 
about available resources; 
 

 Avoid duplication by having a full appreciation of any existing forums already having 
oversight of, or monitoring a particular issue; 
 

 Ensure any Scrutiny undertaken has clarity and focus of purpose and will add value and 
can be delivered within an agreed time frame. 

 
What are the legal implications?  
 

10. This report has no specific legal implications. 
 

What are the key risks and how are they being managed? 
 

11. There are no risk management implications relevant to this report. 
  

Does this proposal support the council’s three Key Pillars? 
 

☒ Inclusive Growth  ☒ Health and Wellbeing  ☒ Climate Emergency 

 
12. The terms of reference of the Scrutiny Boards promote a strategic and outward looking 

Scrutiny function that focuses on the best council objectives. 
  
 

Appendices 
 

13. Appendix 1 – Draft work schedule of the Adults, Health and Active Lifestyles Scrutiny 
Board for the 2021/22 municipal year. 
 

Background papers 
 

14. None. 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
SCRUTINY BOARD (ADULTS, HEALTH AND ACTIVE LIFESTYLES)  

Work Schedule for 2021/2022 Municipal Year 
 

Scrutiny Work Items Key: 

PSR Policy/Service Review RT Recommendation Tracking DB Development Briefings 

PDS Pre-decision Scrutiny PM Performance Monitoring C Consultation Response 

 

 

APPENDIX 1 

 

June 2021 July 2021 August 2021 

Meeting Agenda for 15/06/21 at 1.30 pm. 

Meeting Agenda for 09/07/21 at 10.30 am. 
 

Board Member appointments and the Health 
Service Developments Working Group 
arrangement (PDS) 

 
Meeting Agenda for 27/07/21 at 1.30 pm. 

 
** Consultative Meeting** 

 
The Health and Care Bill and the development 
of the local Integrated Care System (DB) 

No Scrutiny Board meeting scheduled 
 

 
** Consultative Meeting** 

 
Scrutiny Board Terms of Reference and 
Sources of Work (DB) 
 

Performance Update (PM) 
 

 

Working Group Meetings 

  
 
 
 

Site Visits / Other  

   

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 55



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
SCRUTINY BOARD (ADULTS, HEALTH AND ACTIVE LIFESTYLES)  

Work Schedule for 2021/2022 Municipal Year 
 

Scrutiny Work Items Key: 

PSR Policy/Service Review RT Recommendation Tracking DB Development Briefings 

PDS Pre-decision Scrutiny PM Performance Monitoring C Consultation Response 

 

 

APPENDIX 1 

 
 

September 2021 October 2021 November 2021 

Meeting Agenda for 07/09/21 at 1.30 pm. Meeting Agenda for 05/10/21 at 1.30 pm. Meeting Agenda for 16/11/21 at 1.30 pm. 

 
** Consultative Meeting** 

 
Improving ‘same day response’ services in 
Leeds (PSR) 
 
Restart & Prioritisation Plans for the Delivery 
of the NHS Health Check Programme (PSR) 
  
Update on the development of the local 
Integrated Care System (PSR) 

 
The development and future vision of stroke 
services in Leeds, including reference to the adult 
inpatient rehabilitation service (PSR) 
 
Community neurological rehabilitation service 
redesign (PDS) 
 
Understanding and addressing the symptoms of 
‘long Covid’ (PSR)  
 

 
Update on the development of the local 
Integrated Care System (PSR) 
 
Understanding the impact of Covid-19 
and the ongoing recovery measures 
across the local health and care system 
(PSR)  
 
 

 

Working Group Meetings 

   

Site Visits / Other  

   

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 56



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
SCRUTINY BOARD (ADULTS, HEALTH AND ACTIVE LIFESTYLES)  

Work Schedule for 2021/2022 Municipal Year 
 

Scrutiny Work Items Key: 

PSR Policy/Service Review RT Recommendation Tracking DB Development Briefings 

PDS Pre-decision Scrutiny PM Performance Monitoring C Consultation Response 

 

 

APPENDIX 1 

 

December 2021 January 2022 February 2022 

No Scrutiny Board meeting scheduled Meeting Agenda for 11/01/022 at 1.30 pm. Meeting Agenda for 08/02/22 at 1.30 pm. 

 
 

 
Performance report (PM) 
 
Financial Health Monitoring (PSR) 
 
2022/23 Initial Budget Proposals (PDS) 
 
Best City Ambition – Initial Proposals (PDS) 
 
Development of the local Integrated Care 
System – Draft Constitution of the West 
Yorkshire Integrated Care Board (PDS) 
 
Tackling health inequalities and the Leeds 
response to the ‘Build Back Fairer: Covid 19 
Marmot Review – Including proposal for Leeds to 
become a Marmot City (PDS)  
 

 
** Consultative Meeting** 

 
LTHT update on the impact and 
response to the Covid-19 Omicron 
variant (PSR) 
 
Primary Care Workforce Development 
(PSR) 
 
Active Leeds and Physical Activity 
Ambition Update (PSR) 
 
 
 
 

Working Group Meetings 

2022/23 Initial Budget Proposals (PDS) – 
9/12/21 @ 3pm. 

 

 
 

Access to local dental services 

 
 

Site Visits / Other  

   

P
age 57



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
SCRUTINY BOARD (ADULTS, HEALTH AND ACTIVE LIFESTYLES)  

Work Schedule for 2021/2022 Municipal Year 
 

Scrutiny Work Items Key: 

PSR Policy/Service Review RT Recommendation Tracking DB Development Briefings 

PDS Pre-decision Scrutiny PM Performance Monitoring C Consultation Response 

 

 

APPENDIX 1 

 
 
 

March 2022 April 2022 May 2022 

Meeting Agenda for 15/03/22 at 1.30 pm. No Scrutiny Board meeting scheduled No Scrutiny Board meeting scheduled 

 
Update on the development of the local 
Integrated Care System (PSR) 

 
 

Working Group Meetings 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

P
age 58


	Agenda
	2 LTHT update on the impact and response to the Covid-19 Omicron variant.
	3 Primary Medical Services in Leeds - Workforce Development
	Item 3 - Appendix 1 - CCG Primary Workforce Develpoment briefing

	4 Active Leeds and Physical Activity Ambition Update
	Item 4 - Appendix 1 - COVID 19 Rapid Literature Review Short Report
	Item 4 - Appendix 2 - Additional case study examples

	5 Work Schedule
	Item 5 - Appendix 1 - AHAL work schedule 2021-22


